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The View from “80,000 Feet”:   
Todd Park in the Run Up to Healthcare.gov  

 
To highlight the key findings of this report:   
 

1. There is ample evidence that Mr. Park played a very limited role in Healthcare.gov.  He 
was the person in the White House that others turned to when they had questions or needs 
related to progress on the program.  This produced a voluminous record of queries from 
Park to the top management on the project at the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services (CMS).  Park was engaged in the effort to reach out to diverse communities, to 
build excitement about gaining access to the healthcare Marketplace.  CMS relied upon 
Park to assist them with interagency issues and in helping find resources when needed.  
None of that work could be described in any meaningful way as “substantial involvement 
with the development of the website’s privacy and security standards” or  “intimately 
involved with the development of the Healthcare.gov website”.  Those quotes come from 
the Majority’s staff report of October 28; 

2. Having examined the complete documentary record from the White House, there is no 
record that shows Mr. Park receiving the normal management tools that would be an 
indication of intimate involvement in development.  He did not receive the monthly 
progress reports from contractors, nor are there records of any involvement in setting 
contract requirements or giving managerial direction.  There is no record that shows him 
engaged in technical efforts at understanding or shaping the design or coding of the 
Healthcare.gov web site.  Those responsibilities were retained at CMS. 

3. Based on a complete review of records, the Minority staff conclude there is no credible 
basis for an allegation that Mr. Park misrepresented his involvement in Healthcare.gov in 
his testimony before the House Oversight and Government Reform Committee on 
November 13, 2013; 

4. Based on a complete review of records, the Minority staff conclude that there is no 
credible basis for an allegation that Dr. Holdren misled the House Science, Space, and 
Technology Committee in his representations about Mr. Park’s and OSTP’s involvement 
in cybersecurity in the development of Healthcare.gov; 

5. The Science, Space, and Technology Committee’s Majority report of October 28, 2014, 
which made serious allegations suggesting that Mr. Park misled another Committee and 
Dr. Holdren misled our Committee, relied on a creative mixing of documents, from 
different people and periods of time, to try to create the impression that the allegations 
against Mr. Park and Dr. Holdren should be taken seriously.  The Majority report also 
misquotes Mr. Park on a significant matter that unfairly suggests Mr. Park was not 
truthful in his testimony before another Committee—we recommend that Members seek 
to have the Majority correct that record immediately;   

6. There is no evidence that Dr. Holdren had any meaningful involvement in Healthcare.gov 
issues, and Park does not include him in his circle of officials engaged in the education 
and outreach work on the launch of the Marketplace; 
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7. The Majority attempted to ambush Mr. Park in a fake “briefing” where they were going 
to surprise him with accusatory questions, selective documents, and a transcriptionist.  
When the White House, nervous about the transcriptionist, backed out, the Majority 
issued an accusatory report to push an unfair and unsustainable story-line that attacks Mr. 
Park’s veracity and his reputation.  There is no justification for such disrespectful conduct 
towards Mr. Park. 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
This staff report is designed to provide background context and detailed documentary evidence 
regarding a hearing to be held by the Oversight Subcommittee titled, “The Role of the White 
House Chief Technology Officer in the Healthcare.gov Website Debacle.”  This Committee has 
held two prior hearings on Healthcare.gov and has sent several letters related to the site to the 
Administration, but the focus of all prior work has been cybersecurity on the site.1  The title of 
the upcoming hearing suggests that the Science, Space, and Technology Committee has shifted 
its focus from an area of clear jurisdiction, cybersecurity, to a broader set of questions about 
program performance.  The program was managed and launched by the Centers of Medicare and 
Medicaid Services (CMS), an office at the Department of Health and Human Services that is not 
typically considered to be in the Committee’s jurisdiction.  No officials at the White House had 
anything to do with the day-to-day management of the army of contractors who were responsible 
for carrying out all aspects of the project.   
 
The Majority have telegraphed their messaging for this hearing both in their choice of a hearing 
title and also in a staff report released October 28, 2014.  That report was titled, “Did the White 
House Knowingly Put Americans’ Sensitive Information at Risk?  Committee Seeks to Clarify 
Contradictions Surrounding Senior White House Official’s Role in Developing Healthcare.gov.”  
That report makes several serious sounding allegations on very thin or tortured readings of an 
incomplete documentary record.  The Majority report presents a pastiche of quotes and memos 
cited from different time frames, mixed together in clever but misleading ways, with many of the 
quotes in the report not involving Mr. Park at all and with no effort to clarify which of those 
things he may have known and which he certainly did not know.     
 
Yet this stew of statements are woven together in a way that attempts to set the stage for a claim 
that both Mr. Park, the former Chief Technology Officer and Special Assistant to the President, 
and Dr. Holdren, the Director of the Office of Science and Technology Policy (colloquially, the 
President’s science advisor), misled the Committee on Oversight and Government Reform and 
the Committee on Science, Space, and Technology.  The report quotes, and, in one instance, 
misquotes, Mr. Park to prove the central allegations of the report:  that Park was “intimately 
involved with the development of the Healthcare.gov website,” and he had “substantial 

 
1. U.S. House of Representatives. Committee on Science, Space, and Technology. Is My Data on 

Healthcare.gov Secure?, Hearing. 19 Nov 2013. 113th Congress.  U.S. House of Representatives. 
Committee on Science, Space, and Technology. Healthcare.gov: Consequences of Stolen 

Identity, Hearing. 16 Jan 2014. 113th Congress. 
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involvement with the development of the website’s privacy and security standards”.  If those 
claims were true, Mr. Park could be accused of misrepresenting his position in testimony before 
Chairman Issa on November 13, 2014.  And if the second allegation were true it may also lead to 
a conclusion that Dr. Holdren made misleading representations to this Committee.   These 
allegations, if supported by documentary evidence or witness testimony, could potentially place 
Mr. Park in legal jeopardy.  Given the large personal stakes for Mr. Park, the irresponsible way 
the Majority manipulate the record to try to support their incredible claims is especially 
disturbing.   
 
Two of Mr. Park’s quotes from the November 13, 2013 House Oversight hearing are made much 
of in the Majority report. 
 
When Park was asked if, knowing how October 1 turned out, he would have asked to see the site 
launch “delayed or pushed back,”  Park responded:  
 

“I don’t actually have a really detailed knowledge base of what actually 
happened pre-October 1.  I don’t know what levers were available.  So I 
would hesitate to make any point now.”2 

 
When asked about how much more testing of the website Park would have done prior to 
launching, the Majority report reads: 
 

“I am not even familiar with the development and testing regimen that 
happened prior to October 1.  So I can’t really opine about that.”3  

 
This second quote is particularly threatening to Park because there is a significant e-mail chain of 
July, 2013 that shows Park getting a detailed account of development and (non-cyber) testing 
from Henry Chao (Deputy CIO, CMS) and Michelle Snyder (COO, CMS).4  This chain calls into 
question the seemingly absolute claim made by Park.  However, the Majority staff report, 
drawing from the “official” transcript produced by the Majority of that Committee, 

 
2 “Did the White House Knowingly Put Americans’ Sensitive Information at Risk?  Committee 
Seeks to Clarify Contradictions Surrounding Senior White House Official’s Role in Developing 
Healthcare.gov,” A Report by the Majority Staff of the Science, Space, and Technology 
Committee, U.S. House of Representatives to Chairman Lamar Smith, Commiittee on Science, 
Space, and Technology and Chairman Paul Broun, Subcommittee on Oversight, October [28] 
2014, p. 6.   
3 Ibid, p. 6. 
4.  Exhibit 1 contains White House records that show a common pattern for Park:  he is tasked by 
the White House to learn something; he turns to Chao and Snyder for information; then reduces 
their information into a bite-sized chunk.  In this example he takes four pages of detailed testing 
and roll-out information from CMS and turns it into a 4 point Powerpoint slide for a White 
House briefing. 
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misquotes Mr. Park’s reply.  Instead of claiming he was “not even familiar”, what Mr. Park 
said was: 
 

“I am not deeply familiar with the development and testing regimen that 
happened prior to October 1.” 5 

 
The official Oversight and Government Committee transcript is contradicted by commercial 
news service transcripts on this point.  More importantly the recording of the hearing bears out 
that the Majority got it wrong, Mr. Park says “not deeply familiar”. We cannot account for the 
transcription practices of another Committee, but our initial inquiries to the White House suggest 
that the Oversight and Government Reform Committee did not submit the transcript to them for 
review.  There is a world of difference between what appears to be an absolute denial of 
knowledge (“not even familiar”) and a qualified denial of knowledge.  The documentary record 
from the White House shows no reason to believe that Park’s actual statement is at all inaccurate.  
The bottom line is that the Majority staff of this Committee used an inaccurate quote to try to 
make it appear Mr. Park perjured himself.   
 
The Majority staff report made these poorly 
documented allegations before receiving White House 
materials from the critical months prior to launch of 
Healthcare.gov (May through October 1 of 2013).  
Now, the White House has turned over thousands of 
pages of documents that shed more light on Mr. 
Park’s involvement in Healthcare.gov.   Upon a 
review of that fuller documentary record, it is 
impossible to sustain an assessment that Park was, as 
the Majority report put it, “intimately involved with 
the development of the Healthcare.gov website.”   
 
Based on the most recent White House document production, it is easy to demonstrate that Park 
gathers a lot of information on a wide array of issues related to the program.  However, using the 
description that he was “intimately involved” in the project implies a direct, daily managerial 
contact with the army of contractors.  There is no document that shows such contact.  In fact, the 

 
5. Page 98 of the transcript from the Issa hearing with Todd Park has this quote – in response to a 
question from Congressman Gowdy about testing before the launch of the site on October 1st: 
Mr. PARK. I am not even familiar with the development and testing regimen that happened prior 
to October 1. So I can’t really opine about that.”  In Part 2 of the video linked below, at about 
22:15 seconds, in response to Congressman Gowdy’s question on testing Park actually says: Mr. 
PARK. “I am not deeply familiar with the development and testing regimen that happened prior 
to October 1. So I can’t really opine about that.”  http://oversight.house.gov/hearing/obamacare-
implementation-rollout-healthcare-gov/   Page 47 of the Federal News Service transcript, has 
Todd Park saying: MR. PARK:  So I'm not deeply familiar with the development testing 
(regimen ?) that happened prior to October 1, so I can't really opine about that -- (inaudible). 

“The bottom line is that the 
Majority staff of this 
Committee  used an 

inaccurate quote to try to 
make it appear Mr. Park 

perjured himself.” 

http://oversight.house.gov/hearing/obamacare-implementation-rollout-healthcare-gov/
http://oversight.house.gov/hearing/obamacare-implementation-rollout-healthcare-gov/
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documents reveal largely superficial contacts with contractors, usually mediated by CMS staff 
and focused on morale building rather than web design.  This report highlights several examples 
of Park’s real role--what it was and what it was not--and we are attaching over a hundred pages 
of previously unreleased White House materials so that people can come to their own opinion.  
 
There is circumstantial evidence that the Majority has an animus towards Mr. Park, and that 
evidence rests on activities that are largely outside the public’s view.  In both the meeting of the 
Subcommittee to issue a subpoena for Mr. Park and in their staff report, the Majority make much 
of the fact that Mr. Park cancelled an appearance for a Subcommittee Member’s briefing for 
scheduled for September 10, but they have not been transparent about what led to that 
cancellation or their plans for that event.6  In August, the Majority received documents from the 
Committee on Oversight and Government Reform that covered communications between HHS 
and Mr. Park.  This Committee had not previously received those materials, and the Majority 
staff relied upon these materials to write their accusatory October 28 report.  However, the 
Majority did not tell Mr. Park or the White House that they had received those materials.  The 
Majority were even reluctant to tell the White House that they had engaged a court reporter to 
make a transcript of the “briefing.”  The Majority appeared to be welcoming Mr. Park to come 
brief them, while planning to get him into the room, without counsel and without notice that they 
possessed materials they believed would show he had misrepresented himself, and transcribe the 
confrontation.   The Majority’s planned September 10 ambush of Mr. Park was designed to place 
him in serious legal jeopardy.  If this conduct does not telegraph animus, and disrespect, it is 
hard to know what would. 
 
In evaluating the claims that Mr. Park was “intimately involved with the development of the 
Healthcare.gov website” and had “substantial involvement with the development of the website’s 
privacy and security standards”, one cannot lose sight of the fact that the development of the site 
was a product of contractual relations between CMS and the contractors on the project.  By law, 
only CMS officials could set or change requirements and define deliverables.  In none of the 
material provided to the Committee is there any evidence that anyone at the White House, and 
certainly not the Chief Technology Officer (CTO), took any step that directed requirements or 
deliverables.  Nor are any of the usual documents used to maintain insight and control over a 
project--especially the monthly performance reports from contractors--found in the White House 
records. 
 
In an interview with the House Oversight and Government Reform Committee, Michelle Snyder, 
the Chief Operating Officer at CMS (and Henry Chao’s direct superviser on the development 
project) was asked about Park’s role in the development and she said this: 
 

 
6 Withdrawal from the briefing is mentioned on the second page of the body of the Majority’s 
staff report.  “Risk?,” p. 4. 
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“I would say with Todd, you know, Todd operates at a -- and again a good way to 
think of this is, if I say Henry is ground level, and I’m 40,000 or 50,000 feet, 
Todd is 80,000 feet.”7 

 
The actual documentary record confirms Snyder’s 
characterization.  The records demonstrate that Park 
did not have intimate day-to-day exposure to the 
program, the contractors, the development’s progress 
or problems, and he had no authority to tell anyone to 
do anything.  He dipped in and out of Healthcare.gov 
as his leadership’s needs bubbled up or requests for 
help with resources or interagency issues came to him 
from CMS.  He ended up covering a lot of different 
issues with the experts at CMS, but his involvement 
was not sustained and it was not a managerial 
involvement.  He served more like a press secretary or 
legislative assistant--to use an analogy that makes 
sense in the context of Congressional offices--where he 
asked questions of the experts, gathered some materials 
from them and then boiled it all down to a powerpoint slide or a few bullet points for use with 
the press.  Park’s exposure to the development of Healthcare.gov was wide but not deep, 
episodic not constant, and acting as a supporter not manager.  Based on the documentary record 
from the critical months of May to October of 2013, the most accurate description of Todd Park 
on Healthcare.gov development is that he was a knowledgeable outsider to the development and 
validation of the website prior to October 1, 2013.  

 
TODD PARK AS CHIEF TECHNOLOGY OFFICER OF THE UNITED STATES 

 
Todd Park left a highly successful career in the IT innovation world to join the Obama 
Administration, first (in 2009) as CTO for HHS and then, in March of 2012, President Obama 
named him Chief Technology Office of the United States.  Park had co-founded athenahealth in 
1997 and then in 2008 co-founded Castlight Health.  Both firms were very successful working in 
the market space of providing information technology tools to make healthcare delivery more 

 
7 .  Transcript of Interview with Michelle Snyder by the staff of the Oversight and Government 
Reform Committee, December 3, 2013, p. 192. 

 

“(I)f I say Henry 
is ground level, 
and I’m 40,000 or 
50,000 feet, Todd 
is 80,000 feet.” 

 
Michelle Snyder, Chief 

Operating Officer, CMS 

“Park’s exposure to the development of 
Healthcare.gov was wide but not deep, episodic not 
constant, and acting as a supporter not manager.” 
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effective and efficient.   His co-founder at athenahealth was Jonathan S. Bush, a cousin of 
President George W. Bush.   
 
The receipt of over 8000 pages of White House documents related to Healthcare.gov responsive 
to the Committee’s request, is useful for the work of the Committee, but distorts Mr. Park’s 
actual work.  While no one denies that Mr. Park had contact with CMS regarding issues related 
to Healthcare.gov, it would be a mistake to pigeon-hole Park solely as the “HealthCare.Gov” guy 
in the White House.  As CTO in the White House, Park oversaw multiple efforts to use IT and 
the internet as a means to make the government more responsive and transparent to the people, 
and to take steps to spur the spread and infusion of technology across the economy and society. 8   
While his position certainly gave him extraordinary insight into how things were unfolding in the 
development of an online healthcare marketplace, his attention was pulled across a wide range of 
initiatives simultaneously.   The Majority are trying to define Park’s job as solely about 
developing the online Marketplace, Healthcare.gov, but he did not have the luxury to work on 
that and nothing else for the months leading up to its launch.  
 
Park led initiatives aimed at a wide swath of opportunities to use technology in creative ways.  
He was responsible for the Open Data initiative to put government data on energy, health, 
education, finance, public safety and global development online.  He oversaw “My Data” which 
is designed to give citizens secure access to personal information about themselves with 
initiatives such as “green button”--where private sector energy companies make data about 
energy usage available to consumers.  Initiatives to improve disaster response and to fight human 
trafficking also fell to the CTO.  The CTO was engaged in “ConnectEd”, an initiative to expand 
broadband access for k-12 schools and to improve training and course materials available to 
teachers for digital learning.  The CTO was also supporting a wide-ranging effort to use the free 
up more spectrum to spur innovation and bring more, higher quality services to consumers and 
businesses.  The CTO worked on internet policy for the Administration, including how to 
balance online privacy against the need for an open, innovative internet.  Park established the 
Presidential Innovation Fellows program to attract bright innovators from the private sector to 
come work for up to a year with a paired innovative government official to address a targeted 
problem.  The CTO also works on the President’s “Open Government” initiative to make the 
government more transparent, responsive and collaborative.   
 
These were initiatives “owned” by the CTO.  In almost all of these areas, Park is overseeing an 
interagency process that would require a lot of collaboration, communication and cajoling of 
agencies to make progress.    A fuller examination of Park’s record of emails would reveal the 
breadth and energy of Park’s involvement as CTO; Healthcare.gov was just a small piece in a 
very large pie.  Park brought to his job the experiences of leading successful startups in the 
competitive, fast paced IT and venture capital world.  His approach relies on “open innovation” 
or “crowdsourcing” and the “Lean Startup” philosophy of getting small, dedicated teams focused 

 
8 Exhibit 2.  This profile from the New York Times provides a good exposure to how Park was 
thinking about Information Technology challenges as CTO and the profile is not all about 
Healthcare.gov in large part because Park’s job was much larger than just that. 
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on achieving what is doable, and then, through rapid innovation and continuous improvement, 
building out from that base.  Park was trying to bring these values to his work across the board as 
CTO.  
 
Park was pulled into work on Healthcare.gov by colleagues at the White House or at CMS when 
they had specific needs.  He was clearly trusted by all sides to understand the challenges of a 
technology start-up, which is essentially what CMS was doing in their development of the 
website.  However, he himself had a full time job just tending to the CTO’s wide portfolio of 
initiatives and Healthcare.gov was very much a sideline that left Park at a very great distance 
from the day-to-day management of the project.   
 
This is not to say that Park was not tempted to ask questions and brainstorm with technical 
people working on the Healthcare.gov project when he had the chance--he had been a brilliant 
developer in his start-ups.  But he did not have the bandwidth to stick in that role, knew that too 
much interference would actually hinder the build being managed by CMS, and, on those rare 
occasions when he slipped up, CMS was not afraid to yank his chain and tell him to back off. 
 

9 EXAMPLES THAT TODD PARK WAS NOT INTIMATELY INVOLVED IN 
DEVELOPING HEALTHCARE.GOV 

 
The attached documents are designed to let fair-minded readers form their own opinions, but we 
believe that the evidence on Park’s role is very clear and can be well illustrated with nine 
examples. 
 
1.  Park and the White House Could Not Direct Contractors 
 
On June 29, 2013, the Deputy Chief Information Officer at CMS, Henry Chao wrote to Park 
regarding a meeting Park had with a subcontractor, Ideo.  Chao wrote,  
 

“I wanted to talk to you about a meeting you had with Ideo.  Apparently 
something was misinterpreted from what you said and the top dog you met with 
circled back to OC [the CMS Office of Communications; OC was in charge of 
certain key elements of the user experience interface] and started to work on an 
alternate rendering of the paper form as if they were instructed to follow a 
different set of requirements.  This is a pretty big issue since Ideo does not get to 
change requirements and scope without it coming from CMS directly.  If there’s 
anything you can do to help clear this up we would greatly appreciate it, or rather 
the program would appreciate it since it will hold the line of confusion and risk.”   

 
Park responds, “Will work on making (this) happen as you’ve requested and report back!”  Mary 
Wallace, Deputy Director in the Office of Communications at CMS reinforced Chao’s message:  
 

“… I think the real concern is to not have contractors trying to interpret what they 
think you or others from HHS or the White House asked them to do.  The biggest 
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help would be for all of you to carry the message that the best thing IDEO (or any 
contractor) can do is what CMS is asking them to do…  We have a lot of 
contractors supporting this effort and we are working hard to keep them all on the 
right track to get everything done in time.”   

 
Park responds:  “Hi Mary, thank you for the flag, will absolutely do!”   
 
Todd reports back that same day, “Hi team, just pinged Team IDEO (including the CEO) and 
said that they should be sure to follow CMS’s lead, and that CMS is the unambiguous 
operational leader of all of the Marketplace work, in case that wasn’t clear ☺...  But what I’ve 
clarified in our follow-up ping is that we are going to circle back with CMS on this (to 
understand current UX [user experience] decisionmaking process and if any further support/air 
cover for user-centric-ness is needed on an ongoing basis...”  There is no evidence that this 
“circle back” ever happens, and as the record revealed, Park himself could not get a hands-on 
user experience of the website until September.  However, this exchange shows that CMS was 
clearly in charge—the keepers of requirements and scope on the project and the only ones with 
the power to direct contractors.  It also reveals that Park’s natural orientation is not towards a 
deep understanding of the scope and requirements of the contract or an appreciation of the 
challenges of managing and integrating a large team of Federal contractors; those issues, which 
lie at the heart of what was delivered on October 1, were solely the domain of CMS.9 
 
2.  CMS Refuses Park’s Offer to Help with “Creative Solutions” on Spanish 
Translation 
 
On September 12, Park sends a note to Marilynn Tavenner about why the roll-out of functional 
Spanish language translation for the Healthcare.gov site would not be ready by October 1. 
“Macon (Phillips, White House Director of New Media) pinged me, and asked what the root of 
the technical issue was and if a creative solution might be possible.  I said that I would check 
with you ☺  Might you be able to circle back with your tech team on this question?  If it would 
be even remotely helpful, I would be more than happy to join the technical conversation as well.”    
In a follow up e-mail that same day, Park writes, “To help with internal understanding here at the 
WH (and therefore with mobilizing energy and help for external messaging!) would you mind if 
I got on the phone with Henry [Chao] for 5 min to get a quick download on the tech details?” 
 
Tavenner says, “Yes, but go through Michelle [Snyder--the Chief Operating Officer at CMS] 
first…  Todd I need folks to understand the VERY best way they can help us -is to reach out to 
the advocates -educate them and garner their energy/support.”  Tavenner loops in Aryana Khalid 
[Senior Advisor to Snyder] of CMS who responds to Park and closes with:  “I know you are 
trying to help us and we so appreciate it.  What we need is folks focusing on what they can do 
which is the messaging and talking to the advocates, not focusing on the IT or trying to come up 
with creative solutions to solve this.  I hope this makes sense.”10  
 
9 Exhibit 3. 
10 Exhibit 4. 
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Note that at this point, Park feels the need to ask permission to interrupt Henry Chao, who was 
doing the day-to-day management of the contractors on the project, to get 5 minutes to pursue 
this question.  How can anyone sereiously think Park is intimately involved in carrying the 
technical side of the program to completion?  In any case, the response to his offer of technical 
assistance is a very clear message to stay in the lane of education and outreach and not to get in 
the way of delivery on the system through technical interventions. Park does not press his offer. 
 
3.  Chao Kills “Open Innovation” on Healthcare.gov 
 
The start-up philosophy that was espoused by Park and others at the White House ran right into 
the wall of Henry Chao’s awareness that he had to build a site that would meet federal security 
standards and not multiply opportunities for fraud.  In this clash of cultures, Chao was a clear 
winner. 
 
On June 22, David Simas (WH Deputy Senior Advisor for Communications and Strategy) starts 
a long e-mail chain titled “this is great” about a blog post by Alex Howard.  He sends his note to 
Park and Tara McGuinness (Senior WH Communications Advisor working Healthcare.gov).  
Park replies, adding Bryan Sivak (CTO/HHS) to the chain,  
 

“I believe what Alex Howard is discussing in this (great) piece is the new 
Healthcare.gov content site, which is up and running, and for which the code has 
been posted on Github (an online repository for open source code).  The content 
site will front-end the Marketplace -- but the actual Marketplace eligibility-
checking/enrollment/plan compare functionality is not up yet.  Bryan, can you 
confirm/elaborate?  Thanks!”   

 
Sivak offers a long reply that includes:   
 

“we are going to publish the code this week…  if you take a look at the 
/developers page you’ll see that we have detailed the programmatic mechanisms 
for accessing content, but have a ”coming soon” where the links to the GitHub 

“What we need is folks focusing on what they can do 
which is the messaging and talking to the advocates, not 
focusing on the IT or trying to come up with creative 
solutions to solve this.” 
 
Aryana Khalid, CMS to Todd Park, White House, CTO, September 12, 2013 
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repos are…  This is a paradigm shift for the federal government and the fact that 
its happening on Healthcare.gov is a really big deal for the tech community.”   
 

There is more back and forth on this, focused primarily about how to get the word out about this 
innovation to the technology press/community, but the basic point is that letting other developers 
look at the code can be used as a means to quickly optimize performance and even expand 
functionality.  This is a clear manifestation of a private sector approach of “crowdsourcing” 
innovation applied to the government.  Github’s slogan is:  “Build software better, together.”   
 
However, Henry Chao weighs in a few days later.  On June 28 he writes to a long list, including 
Sivak, Park and all the key CMS people:   
 

“I want to express my reservations about putting nearly all the source code for the 
hc.gov/Marketplace Portal Website on Github and making it available for 
absolutely anyone in the entire world to use.  While in its current state it does not 
contain the code for the Online Application, someone with less than honorable 
intentions can easily stand up a shadow site that would fake out the general public 
and they can do it easily and literally in just a day or less.  While I believe and 
support sharing and being open about our codebase I think we have to balance 
that with safeguarding security, privacy, and the public trust.”   

 
That email squashed future GitHub releases of code and the sensitive “backend” of the program 
was never put up.11  This chain illustrates the culture clash between the entrepreneurial practices 
from Silicon Valley and the complex statutory and regulatory environment that the day-to-day 
managers of a multi-billion dollar acquisition know they have to live with.12  In this area, the 
second set of considerations trumped the “innovation” of the first set of values.  Also, one can’t 
lose sight of the fact that the discussion around this matter is about how to work the press to get 
maximum exposure for progress on Healthcare.gov. 
 
4.  Park Not Welcome at July “Readiness Review”  
 
In July, Park spends five hours in a “deep dive” briefing with Henry Chao to understand how 
development of the Marketplace was proceeding (this appears to be the only “deep dive” 
between July 1 and October 1).  Chao would have been boiling down hundreds of hours of work 
across the full array of development issues to give Park a sense of where they are because Park 
did not have that kind of time to give to the project.  Park asks if he can attend one of the 
upcoming Readiness Review meetings that was to be an end-to-end walk through to cover where 
things stood with CMS and all the contractors.  Chao initially seems to agree because he has 
Todd’s scheduler engaged to set time aside for Park.   
 

 
11. Adrianne Jeffries, “Why the government unpublished the source code for Healthcare.gov,” 
The Verge, October 18, 2013. 
12 Exhibit 5. 
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In an email that goes to Tavenner, Khalid, Snyder and Chao, Park writes:   
 

“I am very much looking forward to being 
a fly on the wall at the E&E readiness 
review on the 19th.  I’ll be able to attend 
from 11 am to 4 pm…  David Simas is very 
interested in being a fly on the wall for a 
walkthrough of the FFM web workflow, and 
also would love to soak up a sense of the 
underlying complexity of the overall 
Mktplace machine….  he would really 
appreciate the opportunity, and/but also 
doesn’t want to disrupt things in any way….  
(FYI, I’ve briefed him in detail about the fact 
that we’ve locked down business 
requirements and are in pure operational 
execution mode for Oct1/Jan 1).  Thoughts?”   

 
It takes 9 minutes for Snyder to respond:   
 

“We need to talk abt (about) attendance at readiness reviews.  I am sure you can 
anticipate my position on that   Flys on the wall are seldom invisible and often 
distracting!!!!”   

 
Chao weighs in half-an-hour later:   
 

“My recommendation is that the readiness review in which we conduct (sic) is not 
really conducive for being an observer at this point and we should stick to the 
briefing format for you at various intervals.”   

 
Park then graciously withdraws from the event.   
 
5.  Park Can’t Get a Hands-on Walkthrough of Healthcare.gov 
 
Beginning in July, Park asks Snyder and Chao if he can come do a walk-through of the live 
system.  First he asks for a hands-on “tour” in Baltimore for August 5.  After much negotiation 
(partly because others from the White House want to come), they set a time for the evening of 
August 8.  On August 2, Chao writes to Park saying that Snyder has advised that the WH tour 
should be combined with a similar visit by Marilynn Tavenner expected to happen the week of 
August 26.  Park says fine and explains to his colleagues that the exercise was being postponed.  
On August 22, Tavenner writes that she is on vacation that week and would look to do a 
walkthrough the week of September 3.  So the live experience of the system Park tried to 
arrange for early August did not occur until at least September 3.  It is hard to reconcile the 
claim that Park was deeply involved in the development of Healthcare.gov with the reality that 

“Flys on the wall 
are seldom 

invisible and often 
distracting!!!” 

 
Michelle Snyder to Todd Park about 

attending an all-contractor 

readiness review on July 19. 
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Park could not even get access to the web site experience as it was being developed.  And when 
he finally gets what he asked for it is in the context of a big group visit.13 

 
Keeping Park on a short leash for his contact with technical people, precisely to guarantee that he 
does not distract them from their tasks, leads to this amusing exchange regarding a September 24 
visit to the Herndon center.  Snyder writes to Chao, Park and Tavenner:   
 

“I have requested that the security cameras at Herndon be loaded 
with facial recognition software so that if either of you [Park or 
Tavenner] wander into a restricted area armed with a set of 
questions alarms will sound…”   

 
Park responds:  “Will absolutely obey all instructions with precision!!  And really looking 
forward to the visit -- and more than anything, thanking everyone from the bottom of our 
collective hearts for the truly incredible work they are doing ☺”  Tavenner reports back later:  “I 
kept Todd under control (well sort of).  Henry thanks for a great visit!!!” 14  
 
6.  CMS Uses Park to Help When They Have WH, Interagency or Resource 
Issues 
 
Park intervenes on several occasions to help CMS (most often at the behest of Henry Chao) out 
of jams of one kind or another.  Park is tireless and uncomplaining when given these tasks and 
clearly views it as something he can do to help create the space for CMS to succeed in managing 
the program.  Park speaks directly with Blue Cross and Blue Shield executives about why logos 
cannot be integrated into the site by October 1, and also lets WH staff who may be interested in 
helping BCBSA push back know that it could create program risk.15  Park helps Henry in August 
by arranging a call with executives from RedHat to make sure their very best people are put on 
Healthcare.gov development, and to ask for very specific types of specialists that Chao needs. 

 
13 Exhibit 7. 
14 Exhibit 8. 
15 Exhibit 9. 

“It is hard to reconcile the claim that Park was 
deeply involved in the development of 
Healthcare.gov with the reality that Park could not 
even get access to the web site experience as it was 
being developed.” 
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When it succeeds, Park offers to contact the Federal agencies who would be losing some of those 
specialists in the “surge” around Healthcare.gov and also says if they need any other “surges” to 
just ask and he would pitch in to help make it happen. 16  A few days before the system goes live, 
Tavenner asks Park to contact the state-based market leaders--clearly a task she was to do but felt 
she could not make time for.  He spent two days tracking all 15 state IT leaders down and 
reported back. 
 
In the last days before the Marketplace was to go live, Chao contacts Park to see if the White 
House can help arrange transport of server hardware from Florida to Culpeper, Virginia so that 
the communications center CMS had there could handle the expected volume of consumers 
logging onto the site.  Park dutifully goes up his chain to see what is possible while helping them 
try to find a private sector solution.  In the end, Verizon and CMS find that FedEx can do it using 
a special service and they go with that option.17  Park’s behavior clearly shows that he views 
himself as a resource multiplier for CMS, and he is always ready to throw his weight behind their 
requests for help. 
 
7.  Park is an Information Aggregator for the White House:  Cybersecurity 1 
 
As CMS uses Park to mobilize assistance from the White House -- provide “air cover” in Park’s 
phrasing -- staff at the White House turn to Todd Park to get information from CMS on a host of 
issues related to Healthcare.gov--records provided to the Committee show him doing this on 
development in July for a WH briefing and on Hispanic community outreach in September.  
However, much has been made by the Majority of Park’s “involvement” in cybersecurity, and so 
we believe that matter should be dealt with in detail.   A review of the broad documentary record 
provided by the White House makes it very clear that Park is engaged in this matter in the 
August-September timeframe in response to concerns by the people he works for at the White 
House who desire to have a clear, convincing message on security.  The White House was very 
aware that the press and Republican Members of Congress, were starting to spin up stories about 
the security of the site and so it was natural for White House staff to get up to speed on the 
development’s progress and to directly address any interagency needs for policy.  At this time, 
there is also a report out from the HHS Inspector General about testing and security of the Data 
Hub part of the development for Healthcare.gov.   
 
Park’s communications throughout this time clearly reflect his role is almost exclusively about 
message development and information gathering.  He most definitely was not managing 
cybersecurity development of Healthcare.gov. 
 
In August, the WH begins to ask questions regarding cybersecurity and privacy;  Todd Park is 
tasked with gathering information.  Park turns to the experts at CMS for help.  On August 23, he 
writes to Michelle Snyder, Tony Trenkle, and Marilynn Tavenner with a subject, “Cybersecurity 
bullet points needed.”  “WH folks would love to get three basic bullet points describing how 

 
16 Exhibit 10. 
17 Exhibit 11. 
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we will protect the Marketplace from cyberattack.  Many apologies, but if we could get these 
by COB today, that would be fantastic  is that possible?  Below are three strawcase bullet points 
folks have drafted   feel free to edit/change any way you see fit.  See notes following each bullet 
as well.”   
 
It is not clear that Park even drafted these bullets, but the questions he writes are revealing of his 
lack of confidence in the points.  On the first point he notes, “want to make sure this is 
stated/framed accurately.”  On the second point he writes, “you may want to replace this bullet 
entirely with another bullet that describes CMS’s cybersecurity approach and capabilities.  If you 
want to add more than one bullet on that, that’s also totally cool.”  In the event, CMS rewrites all 
three points with the first and second point reflecting substantially new information.18 
 
This exchange sets the stage for an email thread titled, “Cyber next steps,” which is made much 
of in the October 28 Majority staff report’s effort to paint Park as intimately involved in 
decisionmaking around cybersecurity.  The origins of the string are not clear in the materials 
included in the Majority’s report, but documents provided by the White House suggest there was 
a push to get a coherent message together due to external inquiries.  The first email is from Park 
to Tony Trenkle with a cc to Michelle Snyder and it lays out three points.  The first point is: 
 

“We should convene a work session in the next 
week with you, Teresa, Frank Baitman [CIO at 
HHS], his CISO, and probably a DHS person 
and DOJ person (she [Snyder] was thinking 
someone who has experience going after 
cyberattackers), plus any other folks you want to 
have there to discuss how to protect the 
Marketplace from cyberattack.  This would 
include a discussion of our defenses, the threats, 
and our responses to the threats.  I would 
absolutely love to be part of as much of this 
meeting as I can, but also don’t want to be a 
scheduling bottleneck, and it should really 
happen sooner rather than later…  You should 
go ahead and schedule the meeting, and I will 
try to be there for as much of it as I possibly 
can!”   

 
Park’s note makes clear that he does not view himself as central to the substance of the 
cybersecurity discussion that is proposed--the conversation can go on without him.  That is not 
the attitude of a person who is directly involved in shaping cybersecurity aspects of 
Healthcare.gov.  And the point of the meeting would be a memo for the White House that lays 
out response steps for protecting the site from malicious attack. 

 
18 Exhibit 12.  

“I would absolutely love to 
be part of as much of this 
meeting as I can, but also 
don’t want to be a 
scheduling bottleneck, and 
it should really happen 
sooner rather than later.” 
 
Park to CMS staff in discussing the 
need to have an interagency meeting 
on cybersecurity and the 
Marketplace, August 28, 2013 
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Later, that very same day (August 28), he again writes to Tony Trenkle, Michelle Snyder, Frank 
Baitman and Aryana Khalid: 
 

“Aryana and I were also just in a meeting where we got some additional insight 
that is helpful: 
 

 There is a cyber and ACA subcommittee hearing happening on 
September 11, so it probably makes sense to target putting together a 
memo by end of next week (and talking with Alex Karp by the end of 
next week to help inform the memo  will try to set up time with him 
for Thursday the 5th) 

 It sounds like folks would like the memo to cover (1) our preparation 
for and defenses against cyberattack, (2) what would our 
response/action be if an attack/crisis happened, and (3) how would we 
prosecute attackers.  The roster for the meeting Michelle 
recommended (to include DHS and also DOJ to handle the prosecute 
part) sounds spot on. 

 Potentially for incorporation in the memo:  external validators who 
could speak to the quality and strength of CMS cyberdefenses, should 
that become useful.  Alex Karp could be one, but might you have 
others as well? 

 
The memo is again for internal eyes only, but it sounds like people will draw from 
it in appropriate ways for external communications purposes as well.” 

 
This email puts the first one in the chain in a clearer light.  White House concerns about having a 
strong, clear message on cybersecurity, and making sure there was a coherent interagency 
strategy, drove Snyder, Trenkle and Park to begin planning.   What must have been an 
interagency meeting provided Park with more clarity about exactly what was desired by the WH 
for the memo.   
 
The idea that it was an interagency meeting on ACA is confirmed by an email on August 29 
from Edward Siskel (White House Counsel) to a long list of White House staff (Todd Park is 
among them) and including representatives from Justice, HHS, the Federal Trade Commission 
and probably DHS.  Siskel wrote, “Thanks again for participating in yesterday’s meeting and for 
all the work you have been doing to help protect consumers during the roll-out of the 
Marketplaces.  Below is a list of do-outs from the meeting based on my notes.”  All of the to-
do’s on this document have to do with public education materials regarding fraud and an effort to 
identify external validators who can speak to “public education/outreach, intake process, value of 
Sentinel, prosecution, etc.”   
 
There are several places in the records where Park helps locate or asks for “external validators.”  
This is a strategy whereby a quotable expert is found who can confirm for reporters that a 
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particular plan or point is credible.  This is a common technique that is used in Congress as well 
as the White House.  When a story is pushed out, those doing the pushing also provide the names 
of experts who can speak to the credibility of the claim to “validate” the story.   
 
Starting September 2, there is a (relevant) new thread started by Todd Park in an email to Chris 
Jennings, the President’s Senior Healthcare advisor.  The email contains “cybersecurity 
background points for (redacted).” We know the redacted meeting referred to was a scheduled 
Presidential briefing.  Park shares the same points developed by CMS on August 23 with a few 
updates from the August 28 initiative.  Jennings writes back to Park: 
 
“Ok, thanks Todd.  Quite helpful and will serve as a placeholder for (redacted)  We need 
to have all of this locked down for the September 11th hearing we also have to have 
strong message with Justice, FTC, HHS and others for our enforcement event the week of 
the 16th.  I know we had reference somewhere to current federal standards and how they 
exceed private sector as well as track record of protection from attacks.  Can you or 
someone provide that reference for me to bolster confidence building tomorrow?  Thanks 
much for all.  And safe and fun travels my friend.” 
 
Park shares with CMS people looking for more details 
on the idea that federal standards are more rigorous 
than private sector standards.  At 1:38 am on 
September 3, Park sends to Jennings an expanded set 
of bullet points that addressed Jennings’ question.  
These were done up by Frank Baitman (HHS) and 
Tony Trenkle (CMS).  Later, Chris Jennings writes 
back to everyone to thank them for their help and to 
report the meeting went well.19   
 
Instead of being a decisionmaker on cybersecurity, 
Park is involved here in what is an effort to prepare 
external messages and firm up interagency 
coordination on policy because of increased attention 
on The Hill and in the press.  Significantly, nothing in 
these records suggests that Park is drilling down into 
the development of cybersecurity tools in the 
Healthcare.gov website, or the testing of those 
methods or anything of substance about FISMA 
requirements--the things that the Committee has had 
testimony about in prior hearings.  When Jennings 
refers in his September 2 email to how Federal websites have more rigorous security standards 
than the private sector, Park cannot respond in substance, but has to send it to CMS to handle the 
issue.  Time and again, he turns to CMS for expert knowledge in an area he is not expert in to 

 
19 Exhibit 13. 

“Significantly, nothing 
in these records 
suggests that Park is 
drilling down into the 
development of 
cybersecurity tools for 
the Healthcare.gov 
website, or the testing 
of those methods, or 
knows anything of 
substance about 
FISMA requirements” 



 
18 

inform the work of the White House.  It is absurd to try to turn any part of this exchange into 
some evidence that Park had a substantial role in managing or developing cybersecurity code, 
requirements, standards, testing or performance for the website itself.  An important point to 
note:  Henry Chao, who is so often Park’s contact on CMS issues, is not in charge of 
cybersecurity development for the site.  
 
8.  Park as a Spokesman:  Cybersecurity 2 
 
Not to diminish the value of spokesmen, but in complex, modern organizations they are rarely 
the principals in carrying out policy or directing resources.  In his CTO hat, Todd Park often 
played the role of spokesman to the press regarding IT initiatives for the Administration.  There 
are multiple examples of Park seeking information from CMS (not directing them to do things, 
but asking for their help) about Healthcare.gov in preparation for media contacts, but because 
cybersecurity is so important to the Majority’s (mis)characterization of Park, it is important to 
examine an example of how Park worked with CMS to prepare for a press call. 
 
On September 17, the Healthcare.gov team at the White House finished up editing and clearance 
on a press release entitled, “Obama Administration announces a coordinated interagency effort to 
prevent and detect consumer fraud in the Health Insurance Marketplace.”   This is obviously a 
release which has its roots in the education and outreach effort Park participated in as discussed 
above in item 7.   The Office of Communications sets up a background call with the press for 
September 18.  Park writes to Jessica Santillo of White House Office of Communications,  
 

“Hi Jessica, I’m signed up to help with the call!  
Looping in Tony [Trenkle], Frank [Baitman], and 
Brian [Cook of CMS].  Two questions:  1.  Is the 
call on background, or on the record?  2.  Can 
Tony Trenkle and Frank Baitman join me on the 
call?  They are the folks who know the details, 
and it would be super-helpful for them to be on.”   

 
Initially Santillo says that is fine and tells him the call 
will be on background according to “White House 
officials”.  Then Communications decides the call should 
be WH only leading Park to write to Trenkle, Santillo, 
and Baitman (as well as others at CMS)  
 

“it looks like the background call tomorrow is 
with WH folks only, with detailed inquiries to be 
referred to agencies…  I’ve let Jessica know that 
you guys are the font of detailed knowledge on 
CMS/HHS cyber and that I can talk to it at a 
general level only.”   

 

“I’ve let Jessica 
know that you guys 

are the font of 
detailed knowledge 

on CMS/HHS 
cyber and that I 
can talk to it at a 

general level only.” 
 
Park to Santillo, Trenkle, Baitman 

regarding an upcoming press call, 

September 17, 2013 
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This tone of acknowledging that the website technical experts reside at CMS is completely 
consistent with everything Park testified to before Chairman Issa on development more broadly 
and also is consistent with subsequent characterizations made by Dr. Holdren to this Committee.   
 
Park sends around talking points on cybersecurity for their review, but acknowledges they are 
drawn from the past materials that had already been worked up on the issue—meaning that CMS 
had already approved (and re-written) much of it before.  The next day, September 18, the day of 
the call, Park writes to Trenkle and Baitman with additional questions.  These are significant 
because they demonstrate the state of Park’s confidence in cybersecurity matters just two weeks 
before the roll-out of Healthcare.gov.  The first question: 
 

“And Tony, one more background question:  is it the case that the security testing 
is done by an independent contractor managed by CMS info security staff, and 
that the review of results, assessment, and signoff happen via you, the CISO, and 
CMS info security staff?  Thanks!” 

 
Twenty minutes later he sends another email, 
 

“And Tony and Frank, sorry, one more background question:  the press release 
today says:  “Together with our interagency partners, CMS has developed a rapid 
response mechanism to respond to a potential data breach and mitigate the effects 
of attempts to jeopardize the integrity of the Hub and the database it connects”  Is 
this the same thing as the Incident Response capability discussed in Marilyn’s 
letter, but with souped up interagency coordination?  Or is it something 
different?” 

 
Trenkle confirms that he has both characterizations right.  Baitman also sends a reply, but it is 
responding to another question that Park had buried in his draft talking points about how many 
Authority to Operate (ATO) security certificates would be issued for Healthcare.gov.  Park 
thought there would be multiple ATO’s issued; Baitman says just one for whole system—this 
key point Park got wrong.20   
 
It is significant that Park is uncertain about these very basic points.  Anyone substantially 
involved in the cybersecurity side of Marketplace development would know these matters inside 
and out--they are sort of cybersecurity 101 questions.   The fact that Park does not seem to know 
who the security testing contractor is—typically in this kind of note he would mention the 
company—is another “tell” that Park is working in the shallow end of his knowledge pool.   
These questions illustrate that an effort to describe Park as intimately involved in cybersecurity 
development is simply ridiculous.  Not to lose sight of the obvious:  Park’s only reason for 
another crash course on cybersecurity was to serve as a spokesman with the press as a 
“White House Official” explaining the Administration’s initiative.  
 

 
20 Exhibit 14. 
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9.  Park Brings the Cupcakes:  Tending Team Morale 
 
On the 28th Park writes to Chao:  “I have permission from 
Michelle (Snyder) to bring y’all food tomorrow (the 29th) 
in Herndon on the condition that I leave immediately after 
delivering the food and not involve you in a long and 
super-interesting conversation that takes time away from 
your incredibly important work ☺”  Park offers to bring 
lunch or dinner, but Chao indicates meals are covered and 
tells Park, “you are in charge of the out of the ordinary 
surprises.”   
 
Park goes to Georgetown cupcakes to get 150 cupcakes 
and Haagen Daz for ice cream.  He tells Chao that his 
father is driving him to Herndon, and that he will deliver 
the food and leave.  Chao responds:  “I think you can 
come in and help dole out the food and say hello.  People 
here want to be able to at least see you in person.  It really 
makes them feel like someone cares enough about their 
contribution to do this kind of thing so come in for at least 
30 minutes but don’t wander to where the architects and 
engineers… are because they will never let you leave.”21 
 
This small anecdote sheds light on the way that Chao used Park on several occasions: to inspire 
the various teams working to get Healthcare.gov up and running.  Park was an ambassador from 
the White House and he invariably tried to bring food.  The email record is full of offers of Park 
to bring humus, cookies, cupcakes at the drop of a hat.  And from all written accounts, Park is 
passionately enthusiastic and grateful for the hard work the teams were doing.   
 
Anyone who has led groups of people through hard tasks -- any kind of campaign, for example -- 
knows how important small acts of kindness and appreciation are to keeping people motivated 
and moving forward.  Park played this role very, very well.   
 
Even at the very end, Park was trying to inspire people to great efforts to make October 1 a 
success.  At 11:02 pm on September 30, Park sends an email to a string of top CMS and 
Verizon/Terremark, CGI recipients.  Because it is so revealing of Park’s attitude and personality, 
it is worth quoting from at length. 
 

“Dear Laura, David, and Chris, thank you so very much for the heroic work you 
have done and are doing to support Marketplace go-live!  We have one more 
favor to ask:   

 
21 Exhibit 15. 
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I understand from Henry that a Verizon/Terremark team is working very hard to 
activate all the new hardware that’s arrived at Culpeper.   
Every new VM, every ounce of additional power adds materially to the 
probability of a successful go-live tomorrow morning.   
If there is any possible way that you could 2x, 3x, 4x progress by having teams 
work in parallel tonight, that would be absolutely amazing. 
Possible? 
This is a historic moment, and the team is so very close to pulling off a feat for 
the ages   is there any way to amp things up even further? 
We would be massively, massively appreciative  please contact Henry with 
questions/thoughts!”22 

 
Here Park is playing his role as an inspirational voice asking for the last, best effort from those 
on the front line, without undermining CMS’s authority.  In the end, there was only so much 
exhortation could do to bring the new servers on-line, and it is highly unlikely that insufficient 
hardware was the sole issue that contributed to the problems on October 1.  The problems on 
October 1 are precisely what led Park to be pushed out of his roles as aggregator, advisor, 
supporter and spokesman -- roles appropriate to the months leading up to launch -- to join a 
small team working to get down into the guts of the web site to analyze what was wrong and 
how to make it right.  In that, they succeeded, but that success is not of much interest to the 
Committee. 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
Looking at the record:  Park was not to give contractors direction, was not welcome at the 
readiness reviews, was not able to get a hands-on walkthrough of the web experience, was turned 
away on offers to help with technical problems.  Time and again he is pushed by senior CMS 
officials back out of technical discussions or too much on-site time and back to his 80,000 foot 
orbit.  He appears to take these nudges with grace.  
 
The thousands of pages of records simply do not sustain a claim that Mr. Park had “substantial 
involvement with the development of the website’s privacy and security standards” or was 
“intimately involved with the development of the Healthcare.gov website” as the Majority Staff 
Report framed their allegations.  To believe these allegations you have to ignore all the examples 
offered in this report of what Park was not allowed to do by CMS.  To believe these allegations 
you have to distort the record into unrecognizable form.  To believe these things requires that a 
person know absolutely nothing about how multi-billion dollar Federal software acquisitions are 
managed.  None of the normal signs of substantial or intimate involvement in that 
management—communications around requirements, critical path progress and key technical 
issues, changes to scope, work orders, spend rates—can be found in the records involving Park. 
The anecdote about his conversation with Ideo, and the pushback he got from Chao, is as close 
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as the record comes to showing Park interacting on program details with a contractor, and in that 
case Park is schooled on staying in his lane.   
 
In an interview with the staff of the Committee on Oversight and Government Reform, Henry 
Chao was asked about Park’s involvement in development of the website: 
 

“Counsel: …  he [Park] wasn’t involved in the day-to-day management of the 
Federal marketplace.  Is that correct?  The IT? 
 
Chao:  Correct.  Not managing it.  I think he was, of course, you know, part of the 
overall what I would consider the senior leadership, the technical leadership 
anyway, for the Federal Government, of which there’s a natural alignment that 
needs to occur between all technical kind of issues, because of his role. 
 But he didn’t own anything, meaning, you know, he didn’t have the 
budgets, the staff, the contractors.  So the day-to-day management really still falls 
to the operating agencies that are kind of trying to implement the program.  He 
served as --advises on issues, helps you air certain cross-cutting issues, create, I 
believe I mentioned this, a forum to discuss and collaborate on cross-cutting 
issues…  Interagency.  Or even interdepartmental in some cases.  So, you now, 
he’s best suited, you know, to kind of do that role because of his position.   
…. 
 
Counsel:  So he would check in and have conversations to see what was going on, 
but he wasn’t necessarily, how do you put it, like on the ground looking at -- 
looking at code, looking at -- 
 
Chao:  No.  He -- yeah.  He doesn’t provide direction…  He’s not, you know, 
officially in the chain of command, you know, because I take my direction from 
Marilyn Tavenner and the center director of CCIIO, and the chief information 
officer and the chief operating officer of the agency.”23 

 
Todd Park did do a lot of work related to Healthcare.gov.  The record makes abundantly clear 
what Park’s role in Healthcare,gov was prior to October 1, 2013.  He was the chief support for 
CMS needs within the White House, and was the chief representative for the White House when 
Chao was looking for a cheerleader to come inspire the teams.  He was an asset with the private 
sector both in outreach on ACA, but also when Chao was looking for access to top contractors 
who could help his program or when there was a need for external validators. The vast majority 
of email communications between Park and CMS, most frequently Henry Chao and Michelle 
Snyder, are requests for information driven by Park’s own need to provide information to his 
leadership within the White House or to be prepared to interact with the press or public as a 
spokesman for the White House.  In all of these roles, Park excelled.  On balance, the records 

 
23   Transcript of Interview of Henry Chao by staff of the Committee on Oversight and 
Government Reform, July 22, 2014, starting on p. 78.   
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show Park to have been endlessly energetic, enthusiastic, creative, and optimistic. But on 
technical questions related to the development of the website prior to October 1, we are 
convinced that “knowledgeable outsider” is an accurate description.  
 
Mr. Park has already enjoyed a successful career as an IT entrepreneur and job creator.  He gave 
that up for a few years to come to Washington to improve the performance of the government in 
delivering services to the American people and to try to improve our country by pushing 
innovation to address social needs and economic opportunities.  Based on the thousands of pages 
of records and his prior testimony, he did nothing wrong at any stage of his relatively short 
public career.  We can find no basis for alleging that he misrepresented himself before the House 
Committee on Oversight and Government Reform, and absolutely no evidence that he had a 
substantial role in cybersecurity development.  That should also dispose of the allegation offered 
in the Majority’s staff report that Dr. Holdren misled the Committee in his communications 
about Mr. Park’s involvement in developing cybersecurity standards and tools for 
Healthcare.gov.  As to Dr. Holdren himself, there is absolutely no indication in the White House 
records that he had any role in Healthcare.gov.  So far as we could determine, Dr. Holdren is on 
none of the email chains involving Park and CMS.  The bottom line is that the records in our 
possession appear to exonerate both Mr. Park and Dr. Holdren of the allegations made against 
them in the Majority staff report.   
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